MINUTES

“ City Council Meeting
Monday, September 21, 2020 City Hall- Council Chambers, 39250
WHERE INNOVATION MEETS ELEVATION Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 6:00 PM
COUNCIL PRESENT: Stan Pulliam, Mayor, Jeremy Pietzold, Council President, John Hamblin, Councilor,

Laurie Smallwood, Councilor, Jan Lee, Councilor, Carl Exner, Councilor, and Bethany
Shultz, Councilor

COUNCIL ABSENT:

STAFF PRESENT: Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, Mike Walker, Public Works Director, Kelly O'Neill,
Development Services Director, David Doughman, City Attorney, Emily Meharg,
Senior Planner, Ernie Roberts, Police Chief, Greg Brewster, IT/SandyNet Director, Tyler
Deems, Finance Director, and Jeff Aprati, City Recorder

MEDIA PRESENT: none

1. MEETING FORMAT NOTE
The City Council conducted this meeting electronically using the Zoom video conference
platform. A video recording of the meeting is available on the City's YouTube channel:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbYEclgC6VW mV2UJGyvYfg

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Changes to the Agenda

5. Public Comment
None.
6. Consent Agenda

6.1.  City Council Minutes - 08 Sep 2020

6.2. Amendment to Agreement between Skyview Acres Water Company and the
City

Staff Report - 0315

Page 1 of 14


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbYEclgC6VW_mV2UJGyvYfg

City Council
September 21, 2020

Moved by Bethany Shultz, seconded by John Hamblin

Adopt the Consent Agenda.

CARRIED. 7-0
Ayes: Stan Pulliam, Jeremy Pietzold, John Hamblin, Laurie
Smallwood, Jan Lee, Carl Exner, and Bethany Shultz
7. Ordinances
7.1. Ordinance 2020-24 8-14

Code amendments to Chapters 17.10, 17.84, and 17.100
Staff Report - 0321

Abstentions: none

Conflicts of Interest: none

Staff Report

The Senior Planner summarized the staff report included in the agenda
packet. Presentation slides are attached to these minutes. The proposed code
modifications would incorporate specific traffic standards directly into the
code, rather than solely within the Transportation System Plan (TSP), in
accordance with case law regarding clear and objective standards. Other
changes included cul-de-sac standards, transportation impact analyses, and
gender-neutral terminology. The Development Services Director added that
the proposed changes were primarily intended to prevent a reoccurrence of
the traffic-related challenges experienced during the Bailey Meadows
development (in addition to the recently-adopted changes to the annexation
code).

Councilor Lee asked about 17.100.900 regarding payment of sign costs. The
Development Services Director referred the question to the Public Works
Director.

Council President Pietzold noted several sections where specific language
regarding broadband fiber should have been added, including 17.100.00,
17.100.260, and 17.100.310. The consensus of the Council was that
broadband fiber language should indeed be specifically added to those three
sections. The City Attorney advised that staff could make such edits during
the public hearing provided they were displayed publicly before any motions

Page 2 of 14



City Council
September 21, 2020

to adopt the ordinance were made.

Councilor Exner inquired about edits to the definition of Residential Minor
Arterial regarding right-of-way width. The Senior Planner stated that changes
would make the code consistent with the definition in the TSP.

Public Testimony

Testimony in Favor: none

Testimony Opposed: none

Neutral Testimony: none

Staff Recap: none

**The public hearing was closed at this point. See motion below.**
Discussion

Councilor Exner expressed his support for the ordinance. He asked about how
to address sidewalks that do not meet the minimum standards listed in the
code. The Development Services Director stated that improvement of the
sidewalk could potentially be required if the property improves in the future,
though the City typically tends to be relatively lenient on such issues. He also
stated that sidewalk obstructions should be remedied proactively by the City.

Mayor Pulliam thanked staff for their efforts to address this issue as quickly a
possible.

The Senior Planner shared her screen via Zoom to confirm that the requested
edits to sections 17.100.00, 17.100.260, and 17.100.310 had in fact been
made, adding specific language concerning broadband fiber.

The City Recorder performed the first and second readings of Ordinance 2020-
24 by title.

Moved by Carl Exner, seconded by John Hamblin

Close the public hearing.

Page 3 of 14



City Council
September 21, 2020

CARRIED. 7-0
Ayes: Stan Pulliam, Jeremy Pietzold, John Hamblin, Laurie
Smallwood, Jan Lee, Carl Exner, and Bethany Shultz
Moved by Jeremy Pietzold, seconded by John Hamblin
Approve the first reading of Ordinance 2020-24, as amended.
CARRIED. 7-0

Ayes: Stan Pulliam, Jeremy Pietzold, John Hamblin, Laurie
Smallwood, Jan Lee, Carl Exner, and Bethany Shultz

Moved by John Hamblin, seconded by Jeremy Pietzold
Approve the second reading of Ordinance 2020-24, as amended.

CARRIED. 7-0

Ayes: Stan Pulliam, Jeremy Pietzold, John Hamblin, Laurie
Smallwood, Jan Lee, Carl Exner, and Bethany Shultz

Staff Report Presentation Slides

8. Old Business

8.1. Code of Conduct for Boards and Commissions

Staff Report - 0322

The City Recorder summarized the staff report, stating that the City currently
lacks specific guidelines for members of boards and commissions regarding
conduct, mutual expectations, decorum, and interactions with City officials
and the public. Adopting such policies would facilitate the ability of board and
commission members to serve effectively and would create consistency across
the City. The language included is intended to reinforce that members of
boards and commissions are regarded as representatives of the City, and that
the Council may take conduct into account when making appointment
decisions. The code also provides a certification document for members to
sign in the

interest of accountability. Nothing in the proposed code is anticipated to
conflict with existing board bylaws or roles and responsibilities documents.
The proposed code articulates the values of respect, integrity, and service; it
addresses decorum and civility, ad-hominem comments, political involvement
as a board member, and boundaries and expectations regarding interactions
with city staff; and it calls for truth and forthrightness in social media

Page 4 of 14



City Council
September 21, 2020

interactions.

Councilor Lee proposed including language calling for board members to "act
with professionalism" in addition to courtesy and respect. The Council
concurred with her suggestion.

Councilor Exner inquired about the proposed language regarding gifts and
special considerations. Mayor Pulliam suggested the language should simply
cite Oregon ethics law requirements, and the City Attorney agreed. The
Council concurred with this suggestion. Councilor Exner also asked about
flexibility regarding language calling for board members to make every effort
to attend meetings. The City Recorder stated that while the code lays out the
general principle that board members should attend meetings, individual
boards and commissions specify their own specific attendance requirements in
their bylaws.

Moved by Laurie Smallwood, seconded by Jan Lee
Adopt the Code of Conduct for Boards and Commissions.

CARRIED. 7-0

Ayes: Stan Pulliam, Jeremy Pietzold, John Hamblin, Laurie
Smallwood, Jan Lee, Carl Exner, and Bethany Shultz

Report from the City Manager

The City Manager delivered a debrief on the recent wildfire emergency. He thanked
the Police Department for their efforts and communication during the crisis, and
praised Public Works and SandyNet staff for maintaining vital infrastructure. He also
praised the leadership and support offered by local leaders and community members.
He noted the impact of hazardous smoke on the community and on city staff. He
shared that a regional debrief would be held in the coming days during which
communication and coordination challenges experienced during the crises could be
addressed.

Mayor Pulliam praised the public updates and communications issued during the
emergency, as well as the actions of staff in assisting with relief efforts and offering
support services.

Council President Pietzold concurred. He also asked about the recent closure of Bluff
Road. Councilor Smallwood responded that several power poles were blown over in
the storm, and that the hazard could not be mitigated until the ensuing fire
emergency abated.

Page 5 of 14



10.

City Council
September 21, 2020

Councilor Exner expressed thanks for the community support that was offered
including for evacuees from Estacada and for local seniors.

Committee /Council Reports

Councilor Shultz: the Library has restarted curbside services after being impacted by
wildfire smoke. Limited public computer access will also begin this week. She asked
about progress made on the issue of increasing employee safety outside of City
facilities. The City Manager stated that options for increasing outdoor lighting are
being pursued, as well as keycard access to the building. Councilor Shultz asked that
tot lots be unlocked given the updates to the Governor's COVID-19 regulations. She
expressed disappointment with the recent Arts Commissions resignations, noting that
proper processes had been followed with respect to the mural. She thanked the staff
for their emergency management and communications during the wildfire crisis.

Councilor Exner: also expressed disappointment with the recent Arts Commissions
resignations, and noted that it may be prudent to develop a work plan and wait for
the board to add new members before resuming meetings. He asked for clarification
regarding the disposition of donations previously made for the Growing Together
mural. He thanked staff for finding a way to facilitate the recent Movies in the Park
event with COVID-19 safety precautions. He asked whether the City can do anything
to contribute to fire protection, including vegetation separation and mowing of
overgrown areas. He thanked the community for coming together to assist during the
wildfire crisis.

Councilor Lee: noted that the recent transit meeting was postponed, and that the six
city climate action work group she has been attending continues to be productive.
She thanked the Police Chief and Councilor Smallwood for their efforts during the
wildfire crisis.

Councilor Hamblin: added his thanks for the crisis communications during the wildfire
crisis. He asked whether anything could be done to reduce confusion regarding solid
waste and recycling pickup schedule changes. He asked whether wood from downed
trees could be used by local residents, and asked whether the scheduled storm debris
cleanup event would be rescheduled. Staff confirmed it would be.

Councilor Smallwood: also expressed disappointment with the recent Arts
Commissions resignations. She applauded the community response during the
wildfire crisis, and praised Sandy's Helping Hands for their food distribution efforts.

Council President Pietzold: also praised the community response during the wildfire
crisis. He also thanked Police and Public Works staff for responding during the

Page 6 of 14



11.

12.

City Council
September 21, 2020

emergency, and noted the advantages of the City's underground fiber infrastructure.
The next economic development committee meeting will occur in October. OBAC will
discuss emergency preparedness at its next meeting; wildfires should be prepared for
in addition to earthquakes. He noted that online school has begun and expressed
appreciation for SandyNet.

Mayor Pulliam: noted that many new volunteers stepped forward during the wildfire
emergency. He praised the community members involved in distributing food at the
local Les Schwab. He expressed appreciation for the deepening working relationship
with the Oregon Trail School District. He thanked Congressman Blumenauer and
Senator Merkley for their offers of assistance during the wildfire crisis and with
respect to the City's wastewater projects. He thanked members of the Arts
Commission who recently resigned for the time and effort they contributed to the
community. He expressed confidence in ODOT regarding traffic signal improvements.
He noted that past-due utility account balances have grown large during the COVID-
19 temporary relief program, which will have to be addressed. He asked whether
federal COVID-19 relief funds could possibly be used for this purpose. Staff confirmed
that this option is being explored by staff. Mayor Pulliam also noted that he and the
City Manager will meet soon with the Chamber of Commerce to discuss possible
funding assistance options.

Staff updates
11.1. Monthly Reports

Adjourn

Mayor, Stan Pulliam

ey %f

City Recorder, Jeff Aprati

Page 7 of 14


http://staffreports.cityofsandy.com/

Chapters 17.10, 17.84, and 17.100
Code Modifications

Council Meeting 9/21/2020

T J0 g abed



T JO 6 abed

Code Amendments Overview

Primary goal: to incorporate average daily traffic (ADT)
standards into the development code.

Current development code doesn’t contain a clear and
objective criterion that requires subdivisions and other land
division applications to adhere to the ADT standards for
local streets.

Proposed code edits add a clear and objective criterion
related to ADT standards and clear and objective language
related to transportation impact studies.

Staff worked closely with the City Attorney and
Transportation Engineers to revise the proposed code
amendments.




ADT Requires More Connections

vehicle ——

<+— street

Development Development
without ADT with ADT
standards standards

™S e

additional
streets

T 40 QT 9bed




T J0 TT 9bed

Chapter 17.10 Code Amendments
Summary

Added definition of average daily traffic (ADT).

Added ADT limit for local streets.

Revised language regarding green streets.

Other housekeeping amendments, including
gender-neutral terminology.



Chapter 17.84 Code Amendments
Summary

e Revised cul-de-sac standard to be clear and
objective.

 Added clear and objective language related to
transportation impact analysis.

 Other housekeeping amendments.

T J0 2T 9bed



T J0 €T abed

Chapter 17.100 Code Amendments
Summary

Added compliance with ADT standards on local streets to land division criteria.

Exempted ADT standard compliance on local streets for outright permitted
development in the Central Business District, C-1.

— Note: Without this exemption the redevelopment of Pleasant Street would be

problematic. The proposed language only exempts outright permitted uses; whether or
not to exempt conditional uses in the C-1 is a policy call for Council.

Increased tentative plat approval to 2 years with the ability for the Director to
grant a 1 year extension.

— Note: Staff originally proposed a second extension to be granted by the Planning
Commission, but the Planning Commission recommended to remove the second
extension.

Added clarification to street signs, street surfacing, street lighting, bonds, and
performance guarantee sections.

Other housekeeping amendments.



Recommendation

e Staff recommends the City Council approve
the proposed modifications to Chapters 17.10,
17.84, and 17.100.

T J0 ¢T abed



	Minutes
	7.1. Staff Report Presentation Slides

